
 

 
 

Board of Zoning Adjustment 

 
 

       BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT 

March 26th, 2024 

Pre-meeting – 3:30 p.m. (7th Floor) 

Meeting – 4:00 p.m. (Council Chambers) 

 

 

 

 



2 

 

Table of Contents 

MINUTES FEBRUARY 2024 ..................................................................................................................................... 3 

AGENDA................................................................................................................................................................. 7 

CASE NO. 1 2823 HUNTERWOOD DRIVE SE ................................................................................................................... 8 
SURVEY 1 ..................................................................................................................................................................... 9 
SURVEY 2 ................................................................................................................................................................... 10 

CASE NO. 2 2715 APPLEWOOD CIRCLE SE............................................................................................................. 11 

DETACHED GARAGE ELEVATION ...................................................................................................................................... 12 
DETACHED GARAGE LAYOUT .......................................................................................................................................... 13 
SURVEY ...................................................................................................................................................................... 14 
PERMIT APPLICATION ................................................................................................................................................... 15 

CASE NO. 3 16611 6TH AVENUE SW ...................................................................................................................... 16 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



3 

 

MINUTES FEBRUARY 2024 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT:      Chair Delayne Dean, Mr. Mark McCurry, Mr. Chester Ayers, Mr. 

Jeremy Goforth, and Mr. Tom Polk 

         

SUPERNUMERARIES:       Mrs. Flor Gonzalez     

 

OTHERS PRESENT:       Mrs. Ruth Priest, Assistant City Attorney 

        Mr. Tommie Williams, Planner 

        Mr. Bob Sims, Building Inspector 

             Mr. John Waggoner, Building Inspector and Recorder 

         

Chair Delayne Dean called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. in the council chambers on the first 

floor at City Hall.   

 

Chair asked that role be called. Present as noted above. 

 

Chair asked if the January minutes required any corrections. There were no corrections made. 

Mr. Mark McCurry motioned to approve the minutes Mr. Chester Ayers seconded the motion. 

On a voice vote, all yes, the motion carried. The minutes from the January 2024 meeting were 

approved. 

 

CASE NO. 1 

 

Application and appeal of Trav-Ad Signs from Section 25-73 (2) for a sign area variance for on 

premise directional signs for Westmeade Baptist Church located at 2030 Beltline Road SW. This 

property is designated M-1A Expressway Commercial Zoning District. The variance request for 

the directional signs is as follows: 

• Twenty six (26) square feet area variance to install one (1) thirty (30) square feet directional 

sign. 

• Eight (8) square feet area variance to install six (6) directional signs. 

 

Case No. 7 was advertised in November 2023 with an incorrect address and zoning designation, 

the case passed with all YES votes. The corrections are reflected in the above Case No. 1. 

 

Chair stated Tom Polk was an employee at the time this case was presented to the Board and 

must recuse himself from a vote. Chair stated Flor Gonzalez is the supernumerary and will vote 

in place of Tom Polk. 

 

Chair asked the Board for its ruling. Jeremy Goforth made a motion to vote on the corrected 

address and zoning for the November 2023 Case No.7. Mark McCurry made a second. Chair 

called for role. All yes, the motion was approved. 

 

 

 

 



4 

 

CASE NO. 2 

 

Application and appeal of Slims Chickens from Section 25-77 (e) (1) for a sign area variance of 

two hundred twenty seven (227) square feet to install a die-cut/metal/non-lighted/wall décor sign 

located at 1005 Beltline Road SE. The property for the sign area variance is designated M-1A 

Expressway Commercial Zoning District. 

 

Jessie Barrett presented this case to the Board. Mr. Barrett stated the address for the variance was 

1005 Beltline Road SE in the old Milo’s building. Mr. Barrett stated the total square footage of 

the signage is three hundred and twenty (320) square feet. Mr. Barrett stated the bulk of sign area 

variance request was for signage on the drive through side of the building, it would not be on the 

street side, and the sign would be die cut metal with no lights. Mr. Barrett stated he is requesting 

this variance in order for the customer to get the full Slims Chicken experience. 

 

Chair asked for questions from the Board. None. Chair asked for questions or comments from 

the public. None. Chair asked for comments from the Building Department. None. Chair asked 

for comments from the Planning Department. None. Chair closed call for public testimony. Chair 

asked the Board for its ruling. Jeremy Goforth made a motion to vote on the sign area variance. 

Mark McCurry made a second. Chair called for role. All yes, the motion was approved. 

 

CASE NO. 3 

 

Application and appeal of Trav-Ad Signs from Section 25-77 (e) (2) for a sign area variance of 

one hundred and ten (110) square feet to install attached on premise signs located at 809 Beltline 

Road SE. The property for the sign area variance is designated M-1A Expressway Commercial 

Zoning District. 

 

Parks Harris presented this case to the Board. Chair asked Mr. Harris if the variance was for the 

sign that faces Spring Avenue. Mr. Harris stated yes. Mr. Harris stated the previous tenant had 

signs with a square footage of one hundred and twenty seven (127) square feet. Mr. Harris stated 

they are asking for a total of two hundred and twenty nine (229) square feet.  Mr. Harris stated 

the sign area variance is for one hundred and two (102) square feet. Chair stated the square 

footage cannot exceed one hundred and nine point three (109.3) square feet.  

 

Chair asked for questions from the Board. None. Chair asked for questions or comments from 

the public. None. Chair asked for comments from the Building Department. None. Chair asked 

for comments from the Planning Department. None. Chair closed call for public testimony. Chair 

asked the Board for its ruling. Jeremy Goforth made a motion to vote on the sign area variance. 

Chester Ayers made a second. Chair called for role. All yes, the motion was approved. 

 

CASE NO. 4 

 

Application and appeal of an administrative decision to deny Calvin Washington a certificate of 

occupancy for non-compliance of Section 25-11 and 25-16 (2) (b) of the Zoning Ordinance in 

order to provide 88 spaces of off street/off premise parking for an event center located at 211 

West Moulton Street SW. Property for the event center is zoned B-1 Business District. 



5 

 

Application and appeal of Calvin Washington from section 25-16 (9) for a landscaping and 

lighting variance to provide parking for an event center located at 211 West Moulton Street SW. 

The proposed parking area is located at 212 1st Avenue SW and is designated M-2 General 

Industry Zoning District.  

 

Chair stated Tom Polk was an employee at the time when the original application was denied and 

must recuse himself from a vote. Chair Stated Flor Gonzalez will vote in place of Tom Polk.  

Chair stated the Board will vote for the off-site parking first, and if successful, the Board will 

vote on the landscaping and lighting variance request.  Nathan Tomberlin presented this case to 

the Board. Mr. Tomberlin stated his address is 310 8th Avenue SE Decatur, Alabama 35603 and 

is representing Calvin Washington. Mr. Tomberlin stated the reason for the variance request is 

due to the physical impossibility to achieve the requirement for on-site parking. Mr. Tomberlin 

stated this case was presented last month and tabled in order to obtain a lease agreement for off-

site parking. Chair asked if the lease agreement was for a site with legitimate parking. Mr. 

Tomberlin stated yes. Mr. Tomberlin stated the off-site parking was a better option and was out 

of the floodplain. 

 

Chair asked for questions from the Board. None. Chair asked for questions or comments from 

the public. None. Chair asked for comments from the Building Department. None. Chair asked 

for comments from the Planning Department. None. Chair closed call for public testimony. Chair 

asked the Board for its ruling. Chester Ayers made a motion to vote on the off-site parking with 

condition to renew lease after its expiration. Bob Sims amended the condition to include a 

requirement for the owner to maintain parking for the event center at all times. Jeremy Goforth 

made a second. Chair called for role. All yes, the motion was approved. 

 

Chair asked if the second part of this variance is for the landscaping and lighting requirements. 

Mr. Tomberin stated yes. Mr. Tomberlin stated we are requesting no landscaping or lighting 

simply because this will be temporary overflow for Mr. Washington’s business and he will be 

providing transportation from the parking lot to the business. 

 

Chair asked for questions from the Board. None. Chair asked for questions or comments from 

the public. None. Chair asked for comments from the Building Department. None. Chair asked 

for comments from the Planning Department. Tommie Williams stated that this being an existing 

parking lot, the Planning Department is in agreeance for the variance of no landscaping and 

lighting. Chair closed call for public testimony. Chair asked the Board for its ruling. Mark 

McCurry made a motion to vote on the variance for landscaping and lighting. Chester Ayers 

made a second. Chair called for role. All yes, the motion was approved. 

 

CASE NO. 5 

 

Application and appeal of Texas Roadhouse from section 25-77 (e) for a sign area variance of 

ninety (90) square feet to install attached LED lighted signs located at 1006 Beltline Road SE. 

The property for the sign area variance is designated M-1A Expressway Commercial Zoning 

District. 

Parks Harris presented this case to the Board. Mr. Harris stated his address is 2814 Dorchester 

Drive SE Decatur 35601 and is representing Texas Road House. Mr. Harris stated Texas Road 



6 

 

House would like to upgrade the existing signs with exactly the same sign square footage they 

currently have. Mr. Harris stated that the current sign square footage exceeds what is allowed. 

Chair asked if they had a variance before. Bob Sims stated no. Bob Sims stated the previous sign 

company must have calculated the sign square footage incorrectly. Bob Sims stated when 

calculated correctly they will need an additional 90 square feet. Chair asked if they were 

increasing the square footage of the current signs. Mr. Harris stated no. Chair asked if they are 

replacing what is currently there. Mr. Harris stated yes we are removing what is there and 

replacing with exactly the same size.  

 

Chair asked for questions from the Board. None. Chair asked for questions or comments from 

the public. None. Chair asked for comments from the Building Department. None. Chair asked 

for comments from the Planning Department. None. Chair closed call for public testimony. Chair 

asked the Board for its ruling. Jeremy Goforth made a motion to vote on the sign area variance. 

Mark McCurry made a second. Chair called for role. All yes, the motion was approved. 

 

CASE NO. 6 

 

Application and appeal of an administrative decision to deny AAA Pawn Shop a certificate of 

occupancy for non-compliance of Section 25-12 of the Zoning Ordinance to operate a business 

licensed under the Pawn Shop Act located at 1520 A West Moulton Street. AAA Pawn Shop is 

requesting a variance from 25-12 to move the business to an adjacent suite in the same building. 

The property for the pawn shop is designated M-1 Light Industry Zoning District. 

 

Randy Campbell presented this case to the Board. Mr. Campbell stated he is the owner of AAA 

Pawn and his address is 1520 West Moulton Street Decatur, Alabama 35601. Mr. Campbell 

stated the owner wants to combine his suite and another for a future sign shop. Mr. Campbell 

stated he would be required to move to an adjacent suite located in the same building. Mr. 

Campbell stated the pawn shop has been in the building since the mid 80’s and that he bought it 

in 2009. Chair stated the hardship is this was not your choice to move. Mr. Campbell stated it 

was not his choice to move and it helps the owner get a new business for Decatur. Chair stated 

this is not adding a new pawn shop in Decatur. 

 

Chair asked for questions from the Board. None. Chair asked for questions or comments from 

the public. None. Chair asked for comments from the Building Department. None. Chair asked 

for comments from the Planning Department. Tommie Williams stated the business is located in 

an M-1 Light Industry district and the use is strictly prohibited. Chair closed call for public 

testimony. Chair asked the Board for its ruling. Mark McCurry made a motion to vote on the 

appeal of an administrative decision. Tom Polk made a second. Chair called for role. All yes, the 

motion was approved. 

 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at 4:23p.m. 

 

_________________________    

Delayne Dean, Chair 



7 

 

AGENDA 

 
CASE NO. 1 

 
Application and appeal of Larissa Abbott from section 25-10.8 (2) (e) for a ten (10) foot side 
yard set-back variance to construct a carport located at 2823 Hunterwood Drive SE. The 
property for the side yard set-back variance is designated R-1 Residential District. 
 
CASE NO. 2 

 

Application and appeal of Danny Hill for relief from an administrative decision to deny a 

building permit and a variance from Section 25-2 (1) to construct a detached garage in the side 

yard located at 2715 Applewood Circle SE. The property for the variance is designated R-2 

Residential District. 

 

CASE NO. 3 

 

Application and appeal of Caroline Scott for a use permitted on appeal from Section 25-95 (a) 

(1) for a Home Day Care located at 1611 6th Avenue SW. The property for the appeal is 

designated R-1 Residential District. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



8 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CASE NO. 1 2823 HUNTERWOOD DRIVE SE 



9 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Survey 1 



10 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Survey 2 



11 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CASE NO. 2 2715 APPLEWOOD CIRCLE SE 



12 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Detached Garage Elevation 



13 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Detached Garage Layout 



14 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Survey 



15 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Permit Application 



16 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CASE NO. 3 16611 6TH AVENUE SW 


